AGREEMENT

BETWEEN

NEW MILFORD BOARD OF EDUCATION

AND

NEW MILFORD SCHOOL ADMINISTRATORS ASSOCIATION

July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2023

	•		

CONTENTS

<u>Page</u>
ARTICLE I - Recognition1
ARTICLE II - Board's Rights1
ARTICLE III - Negotiations Procedure
ARTICLE IV - Savings Clause and Holdover2
ARTICLE V -Working Conditions2
ARTICLE VI -Administrative Vacancies7
ARTICLE VII - Reduction in Administrative Staff7
ARTICLE VIII - Personnel Files
ARTICLE IX - Grievance Procedure
ARTICLE X - Insurance10
ARTICLE XI - Death Benefits
ARTICLE XII - Professional Memberships14
ARTICLE XIII - Conference Allotment
ARTICLE XIV - Longevity Pay14
ARTICLE XV - Compensation14
ARTICLE XVI - Discipline
ARTICLE XVII - Duration
APPENDIX A - Schedule of Base Salaries
APPENDIX B - Medical and Prescription Drug Plan19
APPENDIX C - Flex Dental Plan

This Agreement is made and entered into by and between the Board of Education of the Town of New Milford, Connecticut and the New Milford School Administrators Association.

ARTICLE I RECOGNITION

1. The Board recognizes the Association as the exclusive representative of all administrative employees. For the purpose of this Agreement "administrative employees" are those certified professional employees of the New Milford Board of Education who are employed in positions requiring an intermediate administrator or supervisor certificate, or the equivalent thereof, and are not excluded from the purview of Sections 10-153a to 10-153n, inclusive, of the Connecticut General Statutes.

2. Agency Shop

- a) Within thirty (30) days after employment, all members of the bargaining unit shall have the opportunity to join the Association to pay a service fee, or to do neither. Any administrator who elects to join the Association or to pay a service fee shall execute an authorization permitting the deduction of union dues or service fees.
- As a condition of the effectiveness of this Article, the Association agrees to indemnify and save the Board harmless against all claims, demands costs, suits, or other forms of liability and all court or administrative agency costs, including the Board's reasonable attorney's fees, that may arise out of, or by reason of, action taken by the Board for the purpose of complying with this Article.
- c) The Board will make payroll deductions for union dues or service fees for each employee who submits a written authorization and will remit the same to the Association's Treasurer on a monthly basis.

ARTICLE II BOARD'S RIGHTS

Except as expressly provided otherwise by the specific terms of this Agreement, the Board, acting through itself or through the Superintendent or his designee, has and will continue to retain, whether exercised or not, the right, responsibility and prerogative to direct the public school system of the Town of New Milford in all its respects, included but not limited to the operation of the schools, the direction of the professional staff and the power and authority conferred upon the Board by law. No action taken by the Board pursuant to this Article, other than in direct contravention of an explicit provision of this Agreement, will be subject to the grievance and arbitration procedure hereof.

ARTICLE III NEGOTIATION PROCEDURE

Normally, it is agreed that all Association activity concerning matters of negotiations shall be held before or after school hours, not during the school day.

ARTICLE IV SAVINGS CLAUSE AND HOLDOVER

1. Savings Clause

If any provision of this Agreement is, or shall at any time be found contradictory to law, then such provision shall not be applicable or performed or enforced, except to the extent permitted by law, and the Association and the Board shall jointly consider the effect of such findings and determine future action, if any, with respect to the area of such provision. In the event that any provision of this Agreement is, or shall at any time be contrary to law, all other provisions of this Agreement shall continue in effect.

2. Holdover

In the event that the Board and the Association shall fail to secure a successor agreement prior to the termination of this Agreement, the Association and the Board agree to extend the duration of this Agreement for any period not to extend beyond the date of the execution of a successor agreement. The Board agrees to continue all benefits, financial and otherwise. Notwithstanding the preceding, or any contractual provision, past practice, or case law allowing action to the contrary, no wage increases, by way of step increase or otherwise, will be paid after the expiration of this contract. Payment of any such wage increases, and whether they would be retroactive, will be determined as part of the negotiations for a successor agreement.

ARTICLE V WORKING CONDITIONS

1. All administrators are employed from July 1 of a given year until June 30 of the following year, hereafter referred to as the calendar year.

2. Work Year and Vacations

- a) High School, Middle School, Intermediate, and Elementary School Principals and the Special Services Director will work a 52 week year, beginning on July 1st, with these exceptions:
 - i) the holidays listed in section 3 below;

- ii) twenty (20) vacation days per year, not to be accumulated or carried over without the written approval of the Superintendent.
- b) High School, Middle School, Intermediate School and Elementary School Assistant Principals, the Athletic Director, and the Supervisor of Special Education will work a 50 week year, with these exceptions:
 - i) the holidays listed in section 3 below;
 - ii) twenty (20) vacation days per year, not to be accumulated or carried over without the written approval of the Superintendent.
- c) The actual schedule of vacations will be subject to the approval of the Superintendent of Schools. No vacation time will be taken by any administrator on a school day without first obtaining the specific approval of the Superintendent of Schools. Further, in any year in which a retreat or other training is scheduled by the Administration, vacations will not be permitted that conflict with such training or retreat days. The retreat or training days will be consecutive and will be scheduled and announced no later than April 15th. Fifty (50) week a year administrators shall submit their requests for their ten (10) unpaid days off, at the same time vacation requests are submitted, as set forth above.
- d) If an administrator is assigned to work by the Superintendent on one or more days that were intended to be used as vacation days, and if, as a result, the number of vacation days taken by the administrator for the year is less than that prescribed by this Agreement, the administrator shall be compensated for such days at his/her per diem rate. The number of such days shall not exceed five (5) in any single fiscal year. Alternatively, the administrator may carry over up to five (5) vacation days in any one fiscal year to the next fiscal year. At no time shall an administrator be permitted to accumulate more than five (5) days beyond the contractual allotment of vacation days in any one fiscal year.
- e) Every effort will be made to schedule items involving administrators early on the agenda at Board meetings.
- f) All high school administrators are required to attend the high school graduation.

3. <u>Holidays</u>

All administrators are granted the following days as holidays:

Independence Day Labor Day Yom Kippur* Rosh Hashanah* Columbus Day New Year's Day Martin Luther King Day Presidents' Day Good Friday Memorial Day Veterans' Day*
Thanksgiving Day
Day after Thanksgiving
Day before Christmas*
Christmas Day
Day after Christmas*
2nd Day after Christmas

* providing school is not in session

4. Sick Leave

- a) Administrators will be granted an accrued sick leave at the rate of:
 - i) High School, Middle School and Intermediate School Principals and the Special Services Director

18 days per year

 ii) High School, Middle School and Intermediate School Assistant Principals and Director of Athletics and Supervisor of Special Education

17 days per year

iii) Elementary School Principals and Elementary Assistant Principals

16 days per year

All administrators hired after June 30, 1995, will have their accumulated sick leave capped with a number equivalent to his/her work year.

- b) An administrator who is absent because of illness shall file a signed absence slip with the Superintendent. A physician's statement shall be required if deemed necessary.
- c) Up to five (5) sick days each year may be used to care for a family member who is domiciled with the administrator and who is ill.
- d) For every year an administrator does not use a sick day, two (2) days will be added to a retirement bank for the administrator and paid at the administrator's per diem rate upon retirement pursuant to the Connecticut State Teachers' Retirement Act. This provision is not retroactive to years before July 1, 1998. There shall be no accrual of this benefit after June 30, 2014.

5. Personal Days

- a) All administrators shall be entitled to four (4) personal days each year.
- b) All requests for personal days will be made on the proper electronic form which will be submitted to the administrator's immediate supervisor, at least twenty-four

- (24) hours in advance whenever feasible. All such requests are subject to the approval of the Superintendent of Schools.
- c) Up to an additional five (5) days each year will be granted for the death of an immediate family member or of a household member. "Immediate family" shall include the following: parent, grandparent, grandchildren, sister, brother, spouse, children, and mother and father of spouse.

6. Termination of Employment

a) In the event of termination of employment by either the Board or by an administrator prior to the termination of his or her contract because of release from duties, resignation, retirement or death, remuneration for unused vacation days shall be paid to the administrator or his/her estate. Unused vacation day remuneration shall be determined by prorating to the effective date of such termination based upon the following formulae:

Unused Number of days worked since July 1
Vacation = Total work days from July 1 to June 30
Remuneration

x number of vacation days per contract (less any vacation days previously taken) x per diem pay

Per diem pay = annual salary
number of work days per contract

If the cause of the termination is resignation, the administrator agrees to notify the Superintendent of his/her intent to resign thirty (30) days prior to the fact.

7. Sabbatical Leaves

- a) After seven (7) years of continuous service in the New Milford Public Schools, an administrator may apply for a sabbatical leave of up to one year at ¾ of his or her annual salary at the time of sabbatical leave.
- b) Sabbatical leave salary shall be paid on the regular pay days during the period of leave.
- c) An administrator whose employment by the Board shall terminate prior to complete payment of the sabbatical leave pay shall be entitled to receive only those installments of such pay as become payable prior to the date of such termination. If the terms of the sabbatical are not fulfilled by the administrator, the administrator's contract may, in the discretion of the Board of Education, be terminated and/or that administrator may be required to pay back to the Board, at

- its discretion, monies for salary and/or benefits received by that administrator during the duration of the sabbatical.
- d) As a condition to the granting of a sabbatical leave, an administrator shall agree in writing to return to employment in the New Milford Public School System for a period of three (3) school years upon conclusion of the sabbatical leave, or, in the alternative, to reimburse the Board of Education for all payments made by the Board during the sabbatical leave. Further, the administrator shall execute a promissory note payable to the New Milford Board of Education in an amount equal to the total payments the administrator will receive while on such leave. The terms of the note shall state that if an administrator chooses not to return to employment for three (3) school years upon expiration of the leave, the administrator shall be financially responsible to reimburse the Board all monies received while on sabbatical leave on a prorata basis, that is, one third for each year of the three (3) year commitment.
- e) Such leave shall be for study sponsored by a college or university for which it gives credit and will be directly related to the position held by the applicant, or leave shall be to participate in an activity which will benefit the New Milford Public Schools.
- f) Applicants will be screened by a committee consisting of the Superintendent, Assistant Superintendent and one member of the Association to be chosen by the Association. Sabbatical applicants are not eligible to serve on the screening committee the year they apply for a sabbatical. The Board will take the committee's recommendation into consideration. Granting of applications for sabbatical leave shall be at the discretion of the Board. In no event shall leave be granted to more than two administrators during any one year.
- g) Applications for sabbatical leave shall be submitted in writing, on forms provided by the Superintendent of Schools not later than November 1st of the school year prior to the school year in which the sabbatical leave is to be taken.
- h) The returning administrator will submit a report in writing to the Superintendent of Schools no later than November 1st of the year he/she returns. The report shall include an explanation of studies or activities and their relation to the administrative position held.
- i) If an application for sabbatical leave is not accepted, the applicant will be notified in writing of the reasons it was not granted.
- 8. <u>Method of Payment</u>. All administrators shall be paid in equal pay checks on alternate weeks throughout the year.

9. <u>Severance Pay Upon Retirement</u>. There shall be no severance pay for retiring administrators with the exception of any Early Retirement Incentive Program that may be offered from time to time at the discretion of the Board.

ARTICLE VI ADMINISTRATIVE VACANCIES

- 1. All available administrative vacancies shall be published within the District prior to publication with outside agencies. Qualifications, duties and compensation should be clearly stated in the published material. Administrative appointments will be offered to the applicants who, in the judgment of the Board, are best qualified and will serve the best interests of the school system. If, in the opinion of the Board, two or more applicants are equal, the Board will consider length of service in the system and appoint administrators already in the system when, in the judgment of the Board, such appointment will be in the best interest of the school system. In the event an applicant currently in the employment of the New Milford Public Schools is not selected, the applicant will be notified in writing and given written explanation of the reasons for the Board's decision.
- 2. The Superintendent shall establish the starting salary of a new administrator consistent with the applicable salary schedule and the new administrator's education, certification and experience.

ARTICLE VII REDUCTION IN ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF

- 1. It is recognized that the Board of Education has the sole and exclusive prerogative to eliminate certified staff positions consistent with the provisions of the state statutes, providing such elimination does not result in a failure in its duty as a state agency to implement the educational interests of the state.
- 2. Nothing in this Article is intended to abrogate the Board's right to dismiss or not reemploy administrators under Section 10-151 of the Connecticut General Statutes. The Article is limited to situations that require a reduction in the number of administrators employed by the Board as a result of a decline in student enrollment.
- 3. In the event that a decline in student enrollment necessitates a reduction in the number of administrators employed by the Board, administrators shall be given notice in compliance with the law. The Board will inform those administrators who will be terminated as early as possible.
- 4. Administrators terminated because of administrative staff reductions shall be placed on a re-appointment list and remain on such list for a period of two (2) years. Administrators on the re-appointment list shall be notified by registered letter of any available

administrative or teaching vacancies in the system and shall be offered appointment to any such available vacant administrative or teaching positions within the endorsement areas of their Connecticut certification if qualified as determined by the Superintendent and which determination shall not be unreasonable. If the administrator does not exercise his/her right to accept within fifteen (15) calendar days from the date of the receipt of such notification the administrator will lose the right to accept the available vacancy or vacancies listed in the notification.

- 5. When a period of recall, as specified above, extends beyond the date of this contract, the recall date shall prevail.
- 6. When experience, certification and overall qualifications are considered by the Board to be equal, administrators with seniority will be separated last. Seniority shall commence to accumulate the date the administrator starts his/her job.
- 7. No administrator shall be recalled to a position of greater rank, compensation or authority, or from a part time to a greater part time or full time position.

ARTICLE VIII PERSONNEL FILES

Each administrator shall have the right, upon request, to review all the contents of his/her own personnel files maintained at the administrator's school or at the central office in accordance with the law. A representative of the Association may, at the request of the administrator, accompany the administrator in this review.

Any complaint by a parent of a student or any person, directed toward an administrator and deemed serious enough to become a matter of formal record shall be promptly called to the administrator's attention. Administrators are entitled to know the identity or source of all complaints included in the administrator's personnel file, unless the law requires otherwise.

When material derogatory to an administrator's conduct, service, character or personality is placed in the administrator's personnel files, the administrator will be so notified and given the opportunity to include a rebuttal statement.

Any anonymous, written information about a member of the Association that may be received by the Superintendent or a member of the Board of Education will be given to the administrator in question. Anonymous communication, whether received verbally or in writing, will not be placed in an administrator's file or used as the basis for any evaluation or other employment decision.

ARTICLE IX GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

Any action by the Board or its designees which, in the opinion of the grieved party, is in violation of an express and specific provision of this Agreement is subject to grievance by that party. Any administrator who is of the opinion he/she has a claim arising from the implementation of this Agreement has the right to seek redress through the grievance procedure outlined below. No one may act to deter an administrator from using the grievance procedure, and no administrator's professional status will in any way be affected by his/her use of the grievance procedure. The administrator's right to representation at any and every stage of the grievance procedure is guaranteed. An administrator may select any Association representative to represent him/her, and will designate which Association representative will serve as spokesperson for communications with the Board. Any administrator in the New Milford School System may serve as a representative without prejudice or loss of salary. "Association representative" shall mean a member of the New Milford School Administrators Association and/or a representative of the Connecticut Federation of School Administrators and/or a Connecticut Federation of School Administrators and/or a

1. Time Limits

- a) "Days" shall mean calendar days.
- b) A grievance must be initiated at the Informal Procedure no later than seven (7) days from the date of the occurrence of the event(s) giving rise to the grievance.
- c) Time limits may be extended by the mutual written agreement of the parties.

Definitions

- a) "Grievance" as defined above, shall also include a claim by a grievant that there has been a failure to follow the established procedures of the school district's evaluation program, including support; notwithstanding any provision herein to the contrary, such claim shall be arbitrable and may be submitted to arbitration.
- b) "Grievant" shall mean any certified professional employee member of this bargaining unit and may include a group of administrators similarly affected by a grievance.

2. <u>Informal Procedure</u>

- a) If an administrator feels he/she may have a grievance, he/she should first discuss the matter with his/her immediate supervisor in an effort to solve the problem informally.
- b) The immediate supervisor will, within five (5) days of the meeting, give an answer to the administrator involved.

3. Formal Procedure

- a) If the grievance is not satisfactorily settled at the informal stage, the administrator, within two weeks after receipt of the answer in 1.b. (above), may make a written appeal to the Superintendent of Schools. The Superintendent will review the appeal. Within fifteen (15) days of having received this request for appeal, the Superintendent will send a copy of the decision to the administrator.
- b) Within two weeks after receipt of the written decision in 2.a. (above), the administrator may appeal the decision of the Superintendent to the Board of Education. The Board will, with all due dispatch and in no event later than sixty (60) days of receipt of the appeal, examine the records of the matter, schedule a meeting for the presentation of the grievance by the Association representative and the administrator involved, reach a decision and notify, in writing, the Superintendent and the Association representative and the individual involved of its decision.
- Within a two (2) week time limit after receipt of the Board's decision, the Association may appeal the decision of the Board to arbitration under the Voluntary Labor Arbitration Rules of the American Arbitration Association. The Board and the Association will share the cost of the arbitrator equally, including one chosen by their mutual agreement as provided for below. The decision of the arbitrator shall be binding unless the same is contrary to the law. No grievance will be submitted to arbitration and no grievance will be arbitrable, unless it actually involves the interpretation or application of an express and specific provision of this Agreement. Further, the arbitrator will only have the authority to determine whether the Board violated an express and specific provision of this Agreement and if so, to provide a remedy or relief, but will not have the authority to add to, detract from or modify any such provision of this Agreement. Nothing herein shall preclude the parties mutually to agree to an arbitrator of recognized expertise.
- d) Nothing included herein is intended to prevent the administrator or any parties involved from access to the courts at any stage of these proceedings.

ARTICLE X INSURANCE

The Board shall provide the following group insurance benefits to the individuals covered by the Association, provided the individuals meet all the conditions of the insurance companies and apply for same.

1. Single, two-person and family group medical, and prescription drug will be provided through the SPP 2.0 blended rate plan and dental coverage for each employee and his/her

eligible dependents through the self-insured plan. The schedule of benefits for the health plan is outlined in Appendix B. The schedule of benefits for the dental plan is outlined in Appendix C.

Employees electing to participate in such coverage shall share in the premium cost as follows:

<u>2020-2021</u>	24% of the (current year) allocation rates for individual, two person and family coverage.
2021-2022	24.5% of the (current year) allocation rates for individual, two-person and family coverage.
2022-2023	25% of the (current year) allocation rates for individual, two-person and

family coverage.

- IRC Section 125 Plan. The Board shall maintain a "Section 125" Salary Reduction 2. Agreement for the purpose of enabling eligible Administrators to divert a portion of their gross salaries, prior to reduction for federal income or social security taxes, by a minimum of \$250 to a maximum of \$1,000 per Plan Year for Health Reimbursement, and by a minimum of \$250 to a maximum of \$5,000 per Plan Year for Dependent Care, into an account from which, during the course of the Plan Year, they can be reimbursed for Health Care costs and Dependent Care costs they or their covered dependents incur that are not covered by the Health Insurance Plans described in the Agreement between the Board and the Association, including, but not limited to, their share of the premium costs for such Plans. The Board makes no representations or guarantees as to the initial or continued viability of such a Salary Reduction Agreement, and shall incur no obligation to engage in any form of impact bargaining in the event that a change in law reduces or eliminates the tax exempt status of employee insurance premium contributions. So long as the Board makes a good faith effort to comply with this paragraph, neither the Association nor any administrator covered by this Agreement shall make any claim or demand, nor maintain any action against the Board or any of its members or agents for taxes, penalties, interest or other cost or loss arising from a flaw or defect in the Salary Reduction Agreement, or from a change in law which may reduce or eliminate the employee tax benefits to be derived therefrom. This waiver on the part of the Association shall not extend to acts which may be committed by the Board or its agent(s) other than the furtherance of the I.R.C. Section 125 Plan.
- 3. <u>Group Life Insurance</u>: for the amount three (3) times the administrator's salary rounded to the nearest \$500.
- 4. <u>Long Term Disability Insurance</u>: Long Term Disability coverage for administrators who become totally and permanently disabled in accordance with the following:
 - a) Monthly benefit payments equal to sixty-six and 2/3 (66-2/3%) percent of the administrator's monthly salary (annual salary divided by 12 months), up to a

- maximum benefit of \$7,000.00 per month provided the maximum monthly benefit from all sources will not exceed 70% of the administrator's monthly salary.
- b) Benefit payments to eligible administrators will begin after three (3) months of continued disability or the exhaustion of accumulated sick leave, whichever is later.
- c) Benefit payments hereunder will be reduced by the amount of workmen's compensation benefits, if any, paid to or on behalf of the administrator and by the amount of any other benefit paid to or on behalf of the administrator per the benefit integration section of the Board's Long Term Disability Insurance Policy.
- 5. Disputes concerning payment or non-payment of benefits described above will be taken up by the administrator directly with the insurance carrier and will not be subject to the Grievance Procedure outlined in Article IX hereof. The Board will have the option to change carriers or to self-insure, in whole or in part, provided it does not reduce the level of benefits set forth above and further provided the new coverage includes at least 70% of the hospitals and physicians who were in the preferred provider network of hospitals and physicians that existed immediately before the change was made.
- 6. Upon retirement, any Administrator having completed twenty (20) full years of service in New Milford, and having either attained the age of sixty (60) or having satisfied the eligibility requirements for retirement benefits as defined by the Teachers' Retirement System as set forth in the Connecticut General Statutes, shall receive until death the group health insurance provided then currently employed members of the bargaining unit represented by the Association and, except as provided below, on the same terms and conditions as applicable to those currently employed. For those administrators affected by federal laws pertaining to membership in Medicare (with supplemental insurance), benefits will be made as identical as an independent insurance carrier may allow. In any event, the administrator will pay one hundred percent (100%) of the total premium paid by the Board for all coverage provided that administrator and his/her eligible dependents, including, but not limited to, the premium paid for providing Medicare and supplemental insurance, where applicable.
- 7. Annuity Payment In Lieu of Health Insurance.
 - a) An employee who is eligible for two-person or family health insurance coverage offered by the Board pursuant to Article X, Section 1 above may voluntarily elect to waive all such coverage provided the employee presents proof of comparable alternative insurance through a plan that is not a Board-sponsored insurance plan.
 - b) The procedures to elect a waiver of health insurance coverage are as follows:
 - i. The employee must complete an appropriate waiver of insurance form and provide evidence of existing comparable alternative health insurance coverage. The form and the evidence of insurance coverage must be

completed during the open enrollment period and submitted to the Board's Business Office.

- ii. The waiver of insurance shall be in effect for one year. Once the waiver form has been filed with the Board, the waiver shall continue to be in effect from year-to-year thereafter until the employee elects to reenroll in the health insurance plan pursuant to paragraph e) below.
- c) An employee waiving health insurance coverage shall be paid the sum of \$1,000 in the form of a tax-sheltered annuity to be paid in the month following the twelve month period in which the insurance coverage was waived.
- d) Newly hired employees electing to waive health insurance coverage may do so upon commencing employment with the insurance waiver taking effect on the normal effective date for health insurance coverage. The first annuity payment shall be made to the employee on a pro-rata basis.
- e) In the event an employee who has elected to waive health insurance coverage wishes to reinstate such coverage, the following shall apply:
 - i. Except as provided in ii. below, application for health insurance must be made during the enrollment period; coverage will be reinstated at the start of the next twelve month insurance period.
 - ii. An employee who loses alternative health insurance due to a "qualifying event" may request to reenroll in the Board's health insurance plan. A request for reinstatement must be made in writing to the Business Office. Reinstatement of coverage shall be approved upon the employee's submitting satisfactory proof of loss of alternative health insurance coverage due to a "qualifying event". The health insurance will be reinstated as soon as the insurance provider is able to effectuate the coverage.
 - iii. Any employee who has waived insurance coverage and then loses alternative health insurance due to a "qualifying event" shall be entitled to a prorated annuity payment in the following year provided the coverage waiver was in effect for at least six months.

ARTICLE XI DEATH BENEFITS

In the event an administrator dies, the Board will continue to pay the administrator's salary to his/her estate for a period of thirty (30) calendar days immediately following the date of death.

ARTICLE XII PROFESSIONAL MEMBERSHIPS

The Board shall pay for the memberships of administrators to a maximum of four applicable national professional associations and their Connecticut affiliates, subject to the approval of the Superintendent.

ARTICLE XIII CONFERENCE ALLOTMENT

The Board will reimburse the administrator for all reasonable costs of lodging, meals and transportation to and from conferences, and registration fees for conference attendance. Administrators are to obtain the prior approval of the Superintendent or his/her designee in order to attend a conference or meeting on a school day and/or to receive reimbursement for expenditures for same as indicated above. All requests for reimbursement for conference expenses will be itemized and must receive the approval of the Superintendent. Mileage reimbursement should be at the current IRS level.

ARTICLE XIV LONGEVITY PAY

The Board will compensate administrators with extended service to New Milford as either a teacher and/or administrator over and above the base salary as listed under Article XV plus any applicable degree increment as follows:

Period of Service	
After 15, 16, 17, 18 years of service	\$ 900
After 19, 20, 21, 22 years of service	\$1,000
After 23, 24, 25, 26 years of service	\$1,100
After 27, 28, 29, and over 30 years of service	\$1,200

No administrator hired after June 30, 2014, or a New Milford teacher who becomes an administrator after June 30, 2014, is eligible to receive longevity pay.

ARTICLE XV COMPENSATION

Salary Credit for Advanced Degrees

An administrator who acquires a sixth year certificate or the equivalent of same if evidenced by a university official, will have \$1,500 added to his/her base salary. An administrator who acquires a doctorate from an accredited institution will have \$3,000 added to his/her base salary. An administrator who is already being paid an additional \$1,500 for a sixth year certificate will receive an additional \$1,500 only for the doctorate.

ARTICLE XVI DISCIPLINE

No bargaining unit administrator shall be disciplined (except for oral reprimands) without just cause. Provided, however, that the provisions of Section 10-151 of the Connecticut General Statutes set forth the exclusive procedure for termination or non-renewal of contracts of employment.

ARTICLE XVII <u>DURATION</u>

The provisions of this Agreement shall be effective remain in full force and effect through June 30, 202	
Doual a. Sanson	14 May 1
New Milford Board of Education	New Milford School Administrators Association
	11/13/19 Date

APPENDIX A

NEW MILFORD SCHOOL ADMINISTRATORS ASSOCIATION SCHEDIILE OF BASE SALARIES

ı	PRINCIPAL	PRINCIPAL	SCHOOL PRINCIPAL	SCHOOL PRINCIPAL
		FISCAL YEAR 2020-2021	020-2021	
STEP 1	\$149,283	\$142,809	\$136,754	\$131,624
STEP 2	\$152,440	\$145,964	\$139,724	\$134,364
STEP 3	\$155,594	\$149,122	\$142,693	\$137,102
STEP 4	\$158,906	\$152,435	\$145,810	\$139,981
STEP 5	\$162,219	\$155,747	\$148,925	\$142,860
STEP 6	\$165,700	\$159,225	\$152,198	\$145,880
STEP 7	\$169,601	\$163,121	\$156,130	\$149,564
Employees not on maximum step	_	shall advance one step.		
		FISCAL YEAR 2021-2022	021-2022	
STEP 1	\$151,866	\$145,279	\$139,120	\$133,901
STEP 2	\$155,077	\$148,489	\$142,141	\$136,688
STEP 3	\$158,286	\$151,701	\$145,161	\$139,474
STEP 4	\$161,655	\$155,072	\$148,332	\$142,403
STEP 5	\$165,025	\$158,441	\$151,502	\$145,331
STEP 6	\$168,566	\$161,980	\$154,831	\$148,403
STEP 7	\$172,535	\$165,943	\$158,831	\$152,151

		FISCAL YEAR 2022-2023		
STEP 1	\$154,903	\$148,185		\$136,579
STEP 2	\$158,178	\$151,459		\$139,422
STEP 3	\$161,451	\$154,735		\$142,264
STEP 4	\$164,888	\$158,173		\$145,251
STEP 5	\$168,326	\$161,610		\$148,238
STEP 6	\$171,938	\$165,220	\$157,927	\$151,371
STEP 7	\$175,986	\$169,262		\$155,194

Employees not on maximum step shall advance one step in 2020-21 and in 2021-22. There is no step advancement in 2022-23.

		SCHEDULE OF DANK SALANES	COLLEGE	
	HIGH SCHOOL ASSISTANT PRINCIPAL AND	HIGH SCHOOL ASSISTANT PRINCIPAL AND		
	MIDDLE SCHOOL ASSISTANT PRINCIPAL	MIDDLE SCHOOL ASSISTANT PRINCIPAL	INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL ASSISTANT	ELEMENTARY SCHOOL ASSISTANT
	(Hired Before 7/1/2008)	(Hired On or After 7/1/2008)	PRINCIPAL	PRINCIPAL
		FISCAL YEAR 2020-2021		
STEP 1	\$123,250	\$120,449	\$117,645	\$116,010
STEP 2	\$125,916	\$123,035	\$120,153	\$118,418
STEP 3	•	\$125,621	\$122,660	\$120,825
STEP 4		\$128,339	\$125,296	\$123,354
STEP 5		\$131,057	\$127,930	\$128,539
STEP 6		\$133,910	\$130,696	\$128,539
STEP 7		\$137,439	\$134,140	\$131,876
oyees not o	oyees not on maximum step shall advance one step.	ne step.		
		FISCAL YEAR 2021-2022		
:				

Employees not on maxi	Employees not on maximum step shall advance one step.	
		FISCAL YEAR 2021-
STEP 1	\$125,382	\$122,532
STEP 2	\$128,094	\$125,164
STEP 3	\$130,807	\$127,794
STEP 4	\$133,654	\$130,559
STEP 5	\$136,503	\$133,324
STEP 6	\$139,495	\$136,227
STEP 7	\$143,170	\$139,817
Employees not on maxi	Employees not on maximum step shall advance one step.	e step.

\$118,017 \$120,467 \$122,915 \$125,488 \$130,763 \$130,763

> \$124,782 \$127,463 \$130,143 \$132,957 \$136,461

\$119,681 \$122,231

		FISCAL YEAR 2022-20	<u>23</u>	
STEP 1	\$127,890	\$124,983		\$120,377
STEP 2	\$130,656	\$127,667		\$122,876
STEP 3	\$133,423	\$130,350		\$125,374
STEP 4	\$136,328	\$133,171		\$127,998
STEP 5	\$139,233	\$135,991	\$132,746	\$133,378
STEP 6	\$142,285	\$138,951		\$133,378
STEP 7	\$146,034	\$142,613	•,	\$136,841

Employees not on maximum step shall advance one step in 2020-21 and in 2021-22. There is no step advancement in 2022-23.

APPENDIX A – Page 3 SCHEDULE OF BASE SALARIES

	SPECIAL SERVICES <u>DIRECTOR</u>	SUPERVISOR OF SPECIAL EDUCATION	ATHLETIC DIRECTOR
		EISCAL YEAR 2020-2021	
STEP 1	\$135,339	\$114,368	\$105,810
STEP 2	\$138,309	\$116,813	\$108,043
STEP 3	\$141,279	\$119,258	\$110,274
STEP 4	\$144,966	\$121,823	\$112,616
STEP 5	\$148,654	\$124,389	\$114,959
STEP 6	\$151,356	\$127,084	\$117,416
STEP 7	\$154,721	\$130,459	\$120,563
oloyees not on maximum step shall advance one step.	shall advance one step.		
		FISCAL YEAR 2021-2022	

Emplo

	.	TSCAL YEAR 2021-2022	
STEP 1		\$116,346	\$107,641
STEP 2	\$140,701	\$118,834	\$109,912
STEP 3		\$121,321	\$112,181
STEP 4		\$123,930	\$114,565
STEP 5	-	\$126,541	\$116,948
STEP 6		\$129,282	\$119,448
STEP 7		\$132,716	\$122,648

Employees not on maximum step shall advance one step.

	\$109,793	\$112,110	\$114,425	\$116,856	\$119,287	\$121,837	\$125,101
SCAL YEAR 2022-2023	\$118,673	\$121,211	\$123,747	\$126,409	\$129,072	\$131,868	\$135,370
E				\$150,424			
	STEP 1	STEP 2	STEP 3	STEP 4	STEP 5	STEP 6	STEP 7

Employees not on maximum step shall advance one step in 2020-21 and in 2021-22. There is no step advancement in 2022-23.

APPENDIX B

GROUP HEALTH INSURANCE: SPP 2.0

The health plan benefits shall be as set forth in the SPP effective on July 1, 2019, including any subsequent amendments or modifications made to the SPP by the State and its employee representatives. The administration of the SPP, including open enrollment, beneficiary eligibility and changes, and other administration provisions shall be as established by the SPP.

- a. The premium rates shall be set by the SPP. The parties acknowledge that the rate set by the SPP will be adjusted to achieve a blended rate to provide retired certified employees with insurance coverage at the same rate offered to active employees, as required by statute. The Union accepts the blended rate as calculated by the Employer's insurance consultant.
- b. The SPP contains a Health Enhancement Plan (HEP) component. All employees participating in the SPP are subject to the terms and provisions of the HEP. In the event SPP administrators impose the HEP non-participation or noncompliance \$100 per month premium cost increase or the \$350 per participant to a maximum of \$1400 family annual deductible, those sums shall be paid 100% in their entirety by the non-participating or non-compliant employee. No portion or percentage shall be paid by the Employer. The \$100 per month premium cost increase shall be implemented through payroll deduction, and the \$350/\$1400 annual deductible shall be implemented through claims administration.
- c. In the event any of the following occur, the Employer or the Union may reopen negotiations in accordance with mid-stream negotiation and arbitration provisions contained in the Connecticut General Statutes as to the sole issue of health insurance, including plan design and plan funding, premium cost share and/or introduction of replacement medical insurance in whole or in part:
 - i. If the SPP in its current form is no longer available; or if the benefit plan design of the SPP is modified as a result of a change to the State's collective bargaining agreement with SEBAC, if such modifications would substantially increase the cost of the medical insurance plan offered herein; and/or
 - ii. If Conn. Gen. Stat. Section 3-123rrr et seq. is amended, or if there are any changes to the administration of the SPP, or if additional fees and/or charges for the SPP are imposed so as to affect the Employer, any of which amendments, changes, fees or charges (individually or collectively) would substantially increase the cost of the medical insurance plan offered herein; and/or

- iii. If the cost of the medical insurance plan offered herein is expected to result in the triggering of an excise tax under The Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act (ACA; P.L. 111-148), as amended, inter alia, by the Consolidated Appropriations Act of 2016 (P.L. 114-113) and/or if there is any material amendment to the ACA that would substantially increase the cost of the medical insurance plan offered herein.
- d. In any negotiations triggered under subparagraph "c" above, the parties shall consider the health insurance set forth in the Collective Bargaining Agreement prior to 7/1/19 to be the baseline for such negotiations, and the parties shall consider the following additional factors:
 - Trends in health insurance plan design outside of the SPP;
 - The costs of different plan designs, including a high deductible health plan structure.

Should such negotiations be submitted to arbitration for resolution, the arbitration panel shall consider the foregoing when applying the statutory criteria in making its ruling.

APPENDIX C FLEX DENTAL PLAN

FLEX DENTAL PLAN

HOW IT WORKS

This dental plan provides coverage for a wide range of dental services up to \$1,000 per insured person per calendar year for the services listed below.

DIAGNOSTIC & PREVENTIVE SERVICES

Payable at 100% of usual, customary and reasonable charges at participating dentists:

Initial oral exams - 1/36 months

Periodic Oral exams - 2/Year

Prophylaxis - 2/Year

Topical application of fluoride - 2/Year to age 19

Space maintainers to age 19

X-rays

Emergency Treatment

BASIC SERVICES

Payable at 80% of usual, customary and reasonable charges at participating dentists:

Fillings

Root canals

Deductible:

\$ 50 Individual

Stainless steel crowns (Primary Teeth)

\$ 150 Family

Extractions

Oral Surgery

Repair of dentures - 1/Year

Relining of dentures -1/2 Years

Recement crown

Recement bridge

Repair bridge

MAJOR SERVICES

Payable at 50% of usual, customary and reasonable charges at participating dentists:

Crowns - 1/Tooth/5 Years

Post and core - 1/Tooth/5 Years

Inlays - 1/Tooth/5 Years

Onlays - 1/Tooth/5 Years

Periodontics

Prosthodontics - 1/Tooth/5 Years

Deductible: \$ 150 Family

\$ 50 Individual

				٠
	•			
	•			
	•			